Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited
Statutory Audit for the year ended March 31, 2019
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP I v

Chartered Accountants Sector - 42, Sector Road

Gurugram - 122 002, Haryara, India
Tel : +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mindchampion Leamning Systems Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Mindchampion Leamning
Systems Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Acl and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion en the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we argsequired to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemmal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our apiﬁi:m, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on  March 3 1,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer gt agparate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(8) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 5(v) to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm Registratjgg Number: 101049W/E300004

ay Bachchani
Partner
Membership Number: 400419

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 30, 2019
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Annexure 2

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’

Re: [Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited (‘the Company’)]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mindchampion
Learning Systems Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intermnal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 3
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountdnts
ion Number: 101049W/E300004

y Bachchani
Partner
Membership Number: 400419

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 30, 2019
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Annexure |
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’

Re: [Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited (‘the Company”)]

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment.

(b) The property, plant & equipment are physically verified by the Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period
of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the property, plant & equipment has been physically verified by the
Management during the previous year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there
are no immovable properties, included in property, plant & equipment of the
Company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i)  Theinventory has been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. Inventories lying
with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2019 and no
material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of
which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are
applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.
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(vi) ~ We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

(viifa) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The
provisions relating to duty of custom is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees® state insurance,
income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues
of income tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect
of a financial institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders
during the year.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money way of initial public offer/further public
offer/debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xi1)  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.
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(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements
under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented
upon.

According lo the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act,
2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountan
ICAI Firm registg

¥
Partner

umber: 101049W/E300004

Bachchani

Membership No.: 400419

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 30, 2019
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ASSETS
MNop-current sasets
Property, plant and equipmens

Trade receivablis
Cnsh and cash equivalents
Other financizl assats
Odhier currenl assels
Total eurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
EQUITY

Equity shars capital

Onber squity

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABIITIES
MNon-current liabilities
Financial Labilities
Basrowmngs
Other financial lisbilities
Long Term Provisions
Orther non-current Nalsilities
Total non-carreat labilitie

Current Habilities

Financial liahilities
Bomowings
Trade payahlcs

MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED

CIN: UTI2MDLIB0IPLO111674
Balumce Sheet us af March 31, 2009

Notes

- e

5 (il
5 (i)

6l

LIl
It}
11
13

11}
i}

{a) Tatal snstanding dues of mecro enssrprises and small eoterjises
(b} Total cutstanding dues sther tean (n) above

Orther finnnzial Hobidites
Provisions
Uleet enerent liabjlidess
Total eurrient liahilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

L i}
12
13

The accompanying motes form oo integrml port of these Anancial fasments

As per oar repart of even date

For 5.R. Batlibol & Amaeciates LLP

Prece: Gumigram
Drate: April 30, 204%

(Al mmounts in s, thousands, unless ofhervwise siated)
Az wi
Blarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
2,908 5812
58 366 56,586
25,024 18,206
1569 415
274 LEL6
18,650 17,823
LR TT.502
[N11] TLh
151,434 198,586
EL 47
12230 .
257 601 T00.545
20,348 83, B3
| 632 43,115
P 23,184
T 351,263 481,467
502,639 580351
G964 1] G L
(703,417} (642.610)
{14, TTH} 46,030
250,004 .
i 4,638
Th 1]
1399 6177
51475 10,895
250 4HW
1278 &
Lkb, 326 272527
26,793 6,251
18,230 13,999
32305 60,243
164,940 623,427
17415 634,571
s02,639 S8357

L
#‘m/
Threcion

For and on behall of the Board of Directors off
Mipdchampion Learning Systema Limited

DM - D53 o]

A
UnivesT B umar Gols
Chief Financial Grffices

Flace; Ciarpram
Drate, Apail 30 2019

Lo

Ambt Koy
Darector

=H7LIR1ST

Company Secratary
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CEN: UTZZ00DLI0NI PLC1I1674

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vesr eaded March 31, 2019
(All amvounts in B thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Income
Revenue from operations
Oither inoome

Total income

Expenses

Purchass of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Emgployes benefits expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation and smostisation expense
Oither expenses

Total expenzes

Loss before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional iters {net)

Loss befare Tax

Income tax expenge;

Current tax

Dieferred tax

Lass for the year

Drther comprehénsive Income / (Toss)

ltems that will ne be reclissified subsequently to profit or boss
a) Remémsurement of the defined benefit ohligation

Other comprebensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Earnings [ (Loss) per equity share
{Face Value Rs. 10/~ each);

-Basic

-Driluted

Notes

14
15

18
17
Jand 4
18

n

21

25

The accompanying notes firm an integral part of these financial statemnents

Ag per our report of sven date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm Registration No: 10

Bachchani

Partmer
Membership No: 400419

Place: Guirugram
Date: April 30, 2019

March 31 2019

March 31, 2018

351,140 502,675
26,647 25.669
377787 618,342
74,458 N Béng
{3.371) {19,794)
205,486 204,14]
14,084 50,162
30,039 42751
115,080 178,980
453,816 665,634
{76,029 {47,292
i5,375 .
(60,654) (47.193)
867 5,344
(B6T) [5,266)
(60.654) A7370)
{152} {2612}
(152} (2,612
(60,806) {49,952
(0.58) {0:91)
(0.88) (0.97)

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Mingchampion Learning Systems Limited

L] "Kamar Gola

Chief Financial Officer

Place. Gurugram
Date: Apeil 30, 2089

DIN - 07138197
]

Aviral Bhargava
Comgany Secrétary



MENDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2001 FLOIIETY
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 51, 20149

(All pmounts in fs thousands, wnless otheraise gtted)
8} Equity Share Capital

|
i
|
1
] Farticulars Numbers Amount
i Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed
wed fully paid
] Balonce as af April 1, 26017 19,064,072 190,641
1 Isaue uf equity share capital 50,008, CHHD 500,000
I Balance as at March 31, 2018 69,064,072 690,641
- Issue of equity share capital {note ) - 2
| Balance s at March 31, 2019 69,064,072 690,641
1 b} Other Equity
l Reserves and surplus rher reserves
1 Securilies preminm Hetained earsings Crher egquity Total
|r Balance as at April 1, 2007 200030 [T, 3465 414,087 {126.855)
: Loss for the year ¥ (47 3700 - {47,370
Other comprehensive loss - 26iz) - (2610
Total Comprebensive loss for the year = (49,982 J {459,982)
Increnss ( decrease in equity instramend of
compaund fnencml instrement (OCTs) - - (263,270) (263,2740)
| Expenae for issue of equity share copital - - (4,500} (4,500}
Balance a5 ot March 31, 2008 20,808 (B10,92K) 146,317 (644,61 1)
! Balance as st Apeil 1, 2018 20,000 {£16,92H) 146317 (644511)
| Lesss for the year ; (60654 - {60,654)
| Other comprehensive loss . (152) . (1533
i Total Camprehensive loss for the year = (BD:R06) . {60,506
. ‘Balance as at March 31, 2019 210,000 (BT1,734) 146,317 {T0541T)
|
! The scoompanying notes form an integral pan of these fimancinl statements,
i Asper our report of even date.
|
For 8B Batliod & Assoriatep LLI Fur and oo behail of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration Moo 101040WEI0M004

Amit Ry
Divector
DI - 7138187

Membership No, 400419

[
Umeth Kum Aviral Bhargava
Chief Financial Cifficer Company Sscretary

Place: Gurugram
Bratec Aprid 30; 2019

Plaze: Gurugram
Dz Agperil 30, 20019
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL260 1 FLCIN16T4
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2619

{All amounts in Bs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Yesar ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 Winrch 31, 2018
A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Loss before exceplional items and tax 76,029 47,292
Adjustments to reconcile (loss) before tax to net cash Bows:
Deprecintion and amortisation 30,039 42,751
Allowance For doubtful debis 17,918 30,037
Inventory written offf{written baclk) =1. 780 3210
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)! loss 160 23
Finnne cost 34.084 61, 162
Interest income -11.730 - 466
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment -121 -I.58%
Profit on sale of current investment =802 -G
67 66k 125,992
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes -8, 361 TR, 700
Working Capital Adjustments: ‘
{Drecrease) in trnde pavables -85297 -1.637
Incrense in short tenm provisions 4,087 245
(Decrease) m long term provisions -3 =32
{Dhecrease) in other current liabilities -27482 65614
{Decrease) in other non-current financial abilities 4,538 =3.113
{Decrease) in other non-current lisbilities -3B78 856
Increase/ (decrease) in other corrent financial liabilities 2.652 -4.4%2
Diecrease in current trade receivables 28,885 173,916
{Increase) decrease in non current trade recejvables 1144 1,299
{Increaze) in inventories -3.58] =23.004
[Hecreaze in other non-current financial assets LATS 795
Decrease in other current financial assets 47485 47313
{Increase) decrease in other non-curment asssts =87 12
Decrease i other current assets 3580 6. 846
Decrease in other bank balances 63 -37.791 377 133.055
Cash {used in} / generated from operations 46,152 211,955
[rirect taxes paid (net of refunds) 32. 140 =11.746
Net Cash {Quotflow) / Inflew from eperating activities (A) -14,012 208,004
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property. plant and equipments’ (including capital work-in-
progress, internally developed intangibles and capital sdvances) ~15.4%94 <30, 7%
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment i21 1606
Interest received 11,344 2488
Purchise of Muteal Funds =134.001 =44 (Hi
Proceeds from sale of Mutual Funds 122,673 49,050
Net Cash sutflow in investing activitiés (B) -15,350 -35,612
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MINDC HAMPION LEARNING SVETEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2280DLZO0IPLCI1 1674
Statement of Cash Flow for the year cnded March 31, 2019
{All amounts in Bs, thousands, uniess otherwise stted)

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
s per our repart of even date,

For S.R. Batliboi & Assocjates LLP
Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

For pnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Migdchamplon Lesrning Systems Limited

Murch 31, 201% March 31, 2018
. Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Payment of deferred lease obligation (51,684)
Fepayments of OCDs - { 100,000
Repayments of borrowings = (S0,000)
Intetest paid on cish credit, borrowings and others {34 084) (29,005)
Experise for issue of équiry share capital - (4.500)
Weét Cash cuiflow in finapncing sctivities (C ) (34.084) !HSJHI
Met (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) +(C) {63, 455) {70,792)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year £3,803 154,595
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the zad of the financial year 20,348 83,803
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash fow staterment
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per ahove comprise of the following | Nate 5(if) |
Balanee with Banks

Current Acoomunis 15,076 Ri),D53

“Cheques mnd Drafis oo hand 53 3,750

20,344 53,803

DI - 07138197

Membership Mo, 400419
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Uhesh

Place: Gurugram
Drates. April 30, 2019

Place, Crurugram
[hate, April 30, 201%

r Gola

Chief Financial Officer

Crommpany Secretary
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: U72200DLI001PLCIT1674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Company Information

Mindchampion Leaming Systems Limited (Formerly known as Hole-in-the-Wall Education Lid). (' the Company’) was set up in 2001 and
was involved in the research and development activities for the purpose of discovering the extent to which poor children in rural and slum
areas in India can asccess and leam from web based curriculum using a purpose built ‘Internet Kiosk'. Pursuant to a Scheme of
Arrangement, the School Business Undertaking (SLS) of NIT Limited was transferred to the Company w.ef May 23, 2015 from
appointed date of April 1, 2014. Presently, the Company is primarily in the business of providing education services and other related
solutions to schools across India. The registered place of business of the Company is: 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Gury Ravi Das Marg,
Kalkaji. New Delhi - 110019,

Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statemnents. These policies have
been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

These Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standard (*Ind AS") notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2006 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA')

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS |, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and
division 11 of schedule 111 of the Companies Act 2013, Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statement of
profit and loss and balance sheet, Moretheless. these items are dis-ageregated separately in the notes w the [inancial statements. where
applicable or required. All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in theusand of Indian Rupees (*Rupees’ or "R}
and are rounded Lo the nearest thousands. except per share data-and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on April 30, 2019,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value or amortised cost
« Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

+ Share-based payvments (ESOPs)

Foreign currency translation

i. Functicnal and presentation currency

Tims included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary ¢conomic environment in which the entity
operates (*the functional curreney’). The linancial statements are presented in Indian rupee (Rs.), which is the Company™s functional and
presentation currency

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transtated inte the. functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange guins and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the wanslation of monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Current - non-current classification

Assers and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows:

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following critena:

- it is expected 1o be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in. the Company’s normal operating cycle;

= it i5 held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

* it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period: or

= it is ¢ash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least 12 menths after
the reéporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets (including deferred lax assels) are clazsified as
non-current.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2001PLCI 11674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Liabilities
A liability is ¢lassified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* it is expected o be settled in the Company”s normal operating cycle;
» it i3 held primanily for the purpose of being traded;
* it is due 1o be settled within 12 months after the reporting pericd; or
« the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Terms of a liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, résult in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its elassification.
Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial Habilities, All other liabilities (including deferred tax liabilities) are
classified as non-current,
Operating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based oa
the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of asséts for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of clussification of assets and liabilities as current
and non- currént.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns. trade
allowvances, rebates, discounts and taxes,

When twoe of more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement. each deliverable that is
considered 1o be a separate deliverable is accounted separately, Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the
transaction price is allocated (o each performance obligation based on the standalone sefling prices in accordance with the principles given
in Ind AS 115, Whete the standalone selling prices are not directly observable, these are estimated based on expected cost plus margin or
residual method to allocate the total transaction price, In cases of residual method, the standalone selling price is estimated by reference (o
the total transaction price less the sum of the obsérvable standalone selling prices of other goods or services promised in the contract.
Services are provided under time and material contracts and fixed price contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised over a
period of time in the accounting period in which services are rendered, The revenue from time and material contracts is recognised al the
amuount to which the Company has right 1o invoice,

In respect of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the technical evaluation of utilization of services as per the proportionate
completion method when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be determined from rendering the
service. The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment. a
contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is
recognised over the period of delivery. The foreseeable losses on completion of contract, if any, are provided for. (i) Revenue in respect of
sale of courseware is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership in it are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of
the contracts.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increase or
decrease in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give tise to the revision
becomie known to management.(ii) Revenue from the training services is recognised over the period of the course programs as the case may
be. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the setual service provided to the end of the reporting period a5 2 proportion
of the total services to be provided (percentage of completion method). Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised as the
related services are performed.

Revenue in respect of sale of courseware and other physical deliverables 15 recognised at a point in time when these are delivered, the legal
title is passed and the customer has accepted the courseware and other physical deliverables

In other eases, where courseware s pot considered a separate component under a contract, revenue from the composite course is recognised
over the period of the training or the contract period, depending upon the terms and conditions,

(rher Income

Interest income is recognised on & time proportion basis takmg into sccount the amount outstanding and applicable rate of interest. Interest
income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the cxpected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expecied credit losses
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200D L2001 PLCLLIGTS
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 201%

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM). The CED & CFO of the Company are considered as chiel operating decision makers who assesse the financial performance and
position of the Company. and make strategic decisions, '

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate in India adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted in India at the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the hasis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,
Dreferred income tax is provided in full, using the liahility method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their camrving amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been eniacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recogniséd for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable

_amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when theee isa legally enforceable right o offset corrent tax assets and liabilities and when the
defirred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offsel where the entity has a legally
enforcesble right 1o offset and intends either to settle on a net basis. or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Current tix and deferred tax are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognized in Cther
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case. the tax is also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity,
a4 the case may be.

Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT") credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act. 1961 is recognised as a deferred tax
asset when it is probabile that future economic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will foy
1o the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes lable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates, MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each reporting dite and s
recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit
entitlement has been presented as deferred tax asset in Balance Sheet. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement and deferred tax.

Leases

As a lessee

Leases of property. plant and equipment where the Company. as lessee. has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised al the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower. the
present value of the minimum fease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or
ather financial lisbilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. Thie finance cosl is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so a5 to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company a5 lessee are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for thi lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Other financial assets

i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets i the following measurement calegories:

 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. o through profit or loss), and

= those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair vaiue, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or uther comprehensive income,

I} Measurement

Al initial recognition, the Company measures a {inancial asset at its fair value. Any subsequent change in the falr value is charged to profil
and hoss.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2HODLIMIPLCIE1GTY
Motes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2089

iif) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on u forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand. deposits held at call with
financial institutions. other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Bank overdraft are shown as borrowings in
current financial liabilities in the balance sheet,

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised inatially at fair value and subsequently adjusted for expected credit loss using the effective interest

Inventories: Traded goods

Traded poods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis
of weighted average method, Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. MNet realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the' estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 10 make
the sale,

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property. plant and equipment are stated a1 historical cost less depreciation and a1 deemed cost for the assels acquired prior to
teansition to Ind AS i.¢ April 01, 2016. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributabie to the scquisition of the items.
Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when itis probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for 63 a separate asset |s de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods; estimated useful lives and residual value

Drepreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives
as follaws:

Description of Assets Uselul life

Plant and Equipment including:

- Computers, Printers and relaled Accessories 3 Years

- Computer Servers and Networks 3 Years

= Electronic Equipments & years

- Adr Conditioners 10 years

Office Equipment 3 years

Furriiture & Fixtures T yeurs

Leasthald Improvements 3-5 vears or Ieas:: pvl:nud. whichever is
CNEr

Assets acguired under lease (Included under Plant & Equipment and Furniture & Fixtures) R bivkiod o u::f::rh&' Whicliever it

Rates prescribed under Schedule [T to

All other assets the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis on the straight line method over the useful lifes of the assels. The depreciation charge for each
period is recognised m the statement of profit and loss . The residual values is considered as nil.

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate; at the end of each reporting period

An asset’s carrving amount is written down immediately to fis recoverable amount if° the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estirnated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carmying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
gans’ (losses).

_
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2MIPLCII16TS
Mades to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2089

8) Intangible assets
Computer software - acquired
Shown al acquisition cost and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment iosses and at deemed cost for
the assets acquired prior o transition W Ind AS i.e April 01, 2016.
Education content / products - Internally generated
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design, develpoment and testing of identifiable and unigue educational content /
products controlied by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
« it is technically feasible to complete the development so that it will be available for use;
= management intends to complete the content / product and use;
» there is an ability t use or sell the content / product:
« it can be demonstrated how the content ( product will generate probabile future economic benefits;
= adequate technical. financial and other resources 1o complete the development and w use or sell the content / product are available, and
= the expenditure attributable 1o the content / product during its developmient can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangibles include employes costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.,

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the pointat which the asset is available for use,
Amortisation methods and periods
Intangible assets are gmortised on a straight ling basis ever their estimated usefisl lives which are as follows:

Particulars Useful lifes
Internally generated {Content and prodicts)

- School based non-IT content 10 years

- Others 33 vears
Acquired (Software_eontent and products) -3 years

o) Impairment of assets

Assels are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment 1oss js recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recovernble amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposcs of assessing impairment, assets arc
grouped at the lowest fevels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or Companys of assets {cash-gencrating units). Non-financial assets that soffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

An impairment loss jz reversed if there has been o change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only 0 the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the cammying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

P} Trade and other payabiles

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided o the Company prior o the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Triwde and ther payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting penod. They are
recognised initially ar their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

q) Borrowings

Berrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss aver the period of
the borfowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised a8 transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. the fee is capitalised
as & prepayment for lguidity services and amortised over the period of the facility 1o which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrving amount of a financial lability that has been extinguished or transferred to ancther party and the
censideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gainsi(losses).
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2ZODLIZMIFLCI1674
Neotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for af least
12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end
of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting périod and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand pavment as a consequence of the breach.

Frevisions

Frovisions arc measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required o settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of
the period in which the emplayees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up io the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The lishilitics are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the refated service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments (o be made jn
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporling period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the verms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or loss.

The abligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to oceur,

iii} Past-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- Defined benefit plans such as Gratwity and Compensated absence,

- Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund, Superannuation fund, Pension fund and National Pension system.

Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating 1o the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest eost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets, This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they oecur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and
in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITEDR
CIN: UT2200DL2801FLC111674
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Compensated absences
Liability in respect of compensated absences is provided for both encashable leave and those expected to be availed. The Company has
defined benefit plans for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at
the end of the year using projected unit credit method. Any gain or loss arising out of such valuation is recognised in the Statement of profit
and loss as income or expense as the case may be.
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed within twelve months from the end of the year are treated as short
term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected undiscounted cost of accumulated compensated
absences expected to be availed based on the unutilized entitlement at the year end,
Provident Tund
The Company makes contribution to the “NIIT LIMITED EMPLOYEES’ PROVIDENT FUND TRUST™ for certain entities in India;
which is a defined benefit plan to the extent that the Company has an obligation 6 make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from
the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company's obligation in this regard is sctuarially determined using projected
unit credit method and provided for if the circumstances indicate that the Trust may not be able to generale adequate returns to cover the
interest rates notified by the Government.
The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Superannuation
The Company makes defined contribution, to the Trust established for the purpose by the company towards superannuation fund
maintsined with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligations bevond its monthly contributions.
Cemntribution made during the year is charged 1o Statement of Profit and Loss.

Pension Fund

The Company makes defined contribution to a government administered pension fund towards it's pension plan on behalf of its employees,
The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly contributions. The contribution towards Employee Pension Scheme is charged
Lo Statement of Profit and Loss.

MNational Pension System

The Company makes defined contribution towards Mational Pension System for certain employees for which Company has no further
obligation. Contributions made during the year are charged 1o Statement of Profit and Loss,

Share based payments

Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

The fair value of options granted under the “NIIT Employes Stock Option Plan 20057 is recognized as an emplovee benefits expense with a
corresponding no increase in equity during the year/ previous year. The total amount 1o be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

- including any market performance conditions (e_g., the entity”s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for emplovees to save or holdings shares for a specific period of
timej,

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period. which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adiustment (o eqoity,

Share capital

Equity share capital

Issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the issuance of new
equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity. net of any tax effects,

Earnings per share

i} Basic earnings per share
Basic eanings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable o owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
eqiity shares cutstanding during the financial vear,
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZZMDL2GGIPLCIT1674
Metes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
* the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares. and
= the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares,

Fair value measurément

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the ransaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability. or

= In the absence of a principal market. In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tof by the Company.

All-assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows; based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange forward contracts) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market dats and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in leve] 3.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis; the Company determines whether transters
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
vitlue measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of asse1s and lizbilities on the basis of the nature.
charactenstics and nisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments {other than investment in subsidiaries). at fair value ot each reporting
date.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
sccounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,
Information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the financial statements are as follows:

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions - refer note 2 (s)

Measurement of usetul life and residual values of property, plant and equipment - refer note 2 (m) & 2 (n).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments - refer nete 2 (v}

Judgement required to determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement - refer note 2 (g),

There are no major Assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in & material adjustment within the next financial

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ind AS 116 Leases: On March 30, 2009, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notificd Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the
existing leases Standard. Ind AS 17 Leases. and refated Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
mieasurement, presentation and disclosure of leaseés for both parties to a contract ie, the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces &
single lessee accounting model and requires & lesiee Lo recognize assets and linbilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value Currently. operating lease expenses are charged W the statement of profit & loss, The Standard
also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2019 The standard permits two possible
methods of transition:

= Full retrospective — Retrospectively o sach prior period presented applying Ind AS § Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errory

- Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2001PLC11 1674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Under modified retrospective approach. the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

- Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initizl application or

- An amount equal to the lease lisbility, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or acerued lease payments related to that lease recognized
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods,

The effiect on adoption of Ind AS 116 would be insignificant in the Company's financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March36, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs hiss notified Ind
AS 12 Appendix C. Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit
{or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uneertainty over income tax treatments undéer Ind AS
12. According to the appendix. companies nced to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or
group of tax wreatments; that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible methods of transition —

i} Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

ii} Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix © recognized by adjusting equity on initial application. without
adjusting comparatives,

The efiective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt
the standard on April 1. 2019 and bas decided 1o adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application ie. April 1, 2019
without adjusting comparatives. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes: On March 30, 20119, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind
AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution faxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall
recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit o loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or
after Aprill, 2019, The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits (plan smendment, curfailment or settlement): On March 30, 2019, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with ageounting for plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

- 10 use updated assumptions to determing current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

= W recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or again or loss on settlément. any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling, Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2019, The Company does not have any impact on aceount of this amendment.

Amendments to Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments (Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation): Under Ind AS 109 5 debt
instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. provided that the contractual cash
tlows are “solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding” (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held
within the appropriate business model for that classification, The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI
criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or
receives reasenable compensation for the early termination of the contract,

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2019, These
amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs: The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or
sale-are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applics those amendments. An entily applies those amendments for annual reponting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, Since
the Comipany’s current practice is in line with these amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

(This space has been integtionally lefl blank)
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Fr MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
] CIN: UT220DLIIPLCII 1674
R | Moies to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
" I Al smounts m R thousands, unless otherwise stated)
B2 g 3 Properiy. Plant and Equipment
Leasehald Furniture & Office
. ! - Particulars Flant & Equipments Improvemeats Fiktures Equipments i
l Year end March 31, 2008
E - g Gross carrying amount
Opening gross camrying amount $4.020 356 2620 I8 57014
1 Additions 2,773 248 220 . 3.241
E'w  Disposls 38,328 9 2,047 3 0,387
] Closing Gross Carryisg Amount 15465 595 793 5 19368
E H g Accumulated Depreciation
I Opening sccumulated deprecintion 34,891 146 1,660 15 36,712
E . g Depreciation charged during the vear 16,646 152 916 3 17,717
Dhsposals 38315 o 2,046 3 40,373
1 Closing sccumulated depreciation 13,222 289 550 15 14,055
E ' & NetCarrying Amount 5243 306 263 - 812
| Year end March 31, 2019
E ' 'g Grossing Carrving amount
Opening gross camying amount 15,465 595 793 15 19,868
F o oa] Aditions 970 . : - 970
Disposals 204 74 ., & . 286
E a)  Closing Gross Carrying Amount 19,231 521 785 15 20,552
1 Accumulated Deprecintion
E ! Opening accumulated depreciation 13,222 289 530 15 14,056
i g Depreciation charged during the yeir 3623 144 1ix - 3573
Disposals 204 74 7 - 185
E g Closing acewmulated depreciation 16,641 354 629 15 17,644
MNet Carrving Amount 2500 162 156 - 1,908
E l ; 4, Tntangibde Assets
E l ! Eduurlir:::lcimiulf Softvinre Total Intangibles Inunf:'h::r-im 'l;::ll:“];:taa:gﬁu
l Particulars I pther than assets e
) niernally Genernted prem— antis: Distelonassiar Bevelopment under
E ] g ifontmote i) g Fii {footmote i) Development
| Year end March 31, 2018
E H g Gross carrying amoant
I Cpening gross camymyg amount 95,640 T 460 183,106 1,370 147G
E | g .-ﬂd_dhﬂ:rlu - - - 36,836 Jo. 836
1 Disposals - 383 3831 = 3,831
3 Closiag Gross Carrving Amouni 95646 3629 99,275 38,204 137481
E g Accumulated Amortisation snd Impairment
Oipening accumulated depreciation 17,445 4.038 21,453 21,483
= mf]  Amortisation charge for the vear 21782 331z 25,034 - 503
Disposals ; 5828 3528 2 358
E i Closing accumulated amurtisation 38167 3522 41689 - 41 689
Met Carrying Amount S, 4T 107 56586 38206 04,792
E .m Year tqd March 31, 2019
Grosa carrving smount
o Ohpening gross carmying amonnt G5 646 3629 99,275 38,206 137451
E & 27,946 ; 27,946 14,764 42710
=M Trinsfer - - - (27.546) (27.546)
B ] Disposais . I 1 . 1
i Closing Gross Carrying Amount 123,502 3628 127.220 25024 151244
E . ! Accumulsted Amortisation and Impairment
E ! ! Opening accomulated depreciation 30167 3522 42,689 - 41,689
Ameriisation charge for the year { footnote i) 26,0159 17 b, 166 - 26,166
s I Drsposals - I 1 - i
B il  Closing accumutated amortisation 65,226 3.628 68,851 - 68,854
| Net Carrying Amvant 58,366 . 58,366 25024 3,390
E H ; (1) Reefer Mote 30 for cost incurred during the year on internally generstad intangible assets
I (i) Amaortisation thchides provision for impaiment of ntangible assets agerepating w Bs. 1,550 thousands
b i C |
= i C |
B
(S

—
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MINPCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTIZHDLIM I PLCITI674
Motes to the Financial Statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2019

5(v} Contingeat Liabilitics

& Other money for which the Company is contingently Ikable
1 Cmarantees sssued o bankers witstanding at the end of the vear amounting to Mil (Presious year R 34,002 thomsands),
i} Corporate Cluarantee issued by NIIT Limited 1o Banks on behalf of the Company for Rs. 450,001 thousands { Previous vear Rs 450,000 thousands)

b, Capital and other commitments - Nil (Previcus year Nil)

{This space has been mtentionally lefi blank)

5 Financial Assets {All-ameunts in B3 thousands, unless otherwise stated)
S} Investments As at
Miarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Quoted
Investment m Mutual Funds* 12,230 -
Total 12,230 -
* Investrnent m Mutual Funds are o fair value, whick are as follows:
Investment in Mutual Funds - Quated March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Limits - Value Lmits Value
Ind Financial 79,356 4062 = .
HDFC Mutual Fund 2,220 8164 : :
Towl B1,576 12,210 = -
5iiiy Trade Receivables
{Refer Note 26) As a1
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current Current
Unsecured, considered good® 1,569 f ] 257 601 290,948
Linsecured, considered impaired - - 118 802 117,417
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis (Expected credin
lass) . - {119 802) {(117417)
Tutal 1,569 425 257,601 290,948
* Trade Recesvables ncludes recervables from Reloted Pames amounting fo Bs: 2,571 thousands (Previous vear Bs. 9,083 thousands)
As atl
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
MNon Current Current
5 (ki) Other Financial Assets
Security Peposits Receivable
- Becured, considered good a0 1.50% 213 L]
Untilled Revenue B - 691 48,110
Interest Receivable - . 28 26
Long term deposits with bank
- With onjinal maturity of more than 12 months 244 307 - -
Total 174 181G 15632 49,115
5 (i) Cush And Cash Equivalents As at
March 31, 2049 March 31, 2018
Balance with banks
-Current Accounts 153,076 80,053
Chegues and drafts on hand 5212 3,750
Total 20,348 831,503
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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6 Deferred tax assets (Net) {All emunts in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise siated)
As at
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 18,6590 17823
Met Deferved tax assets 18,6940 17823

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets

Opening balance as at April 01, 2007
Tax income/{expense) recognised during the vear
Closing balance as at March 31, 2018
Tax income/{expense) recogmsed during the vear
Closing balance as at March 31, 2019

MNotes :

Minimum alternate

tax credit
entitlement

12,557

3. 266

17.823

867

15690

) Deferred tax assets on brought forward Josses bias not been recognised in absence of availability of taxable income to et off
the logges. Deferred tax assets on iming ditferences has not been recognised on aceount of prudence.

& (i) Income Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Income Tux
Less - Provision for Income Tax

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
63,184 05,325
[ 18.689) (17.823)
44 495 77,502
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MINDBCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2206DL2001PLCI11674
Motes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at
T Inventories March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
As at the end of the year
Traded Goods
a)} Education and Training Material®* 35,939 20,127
b} Software 3,849 5,290
39,758 34,417
Ag at the beginning of the year
Traded Goods
&) Education and Training Material 29,127 6808
b} Software 5,200 7815
34417 14,623
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory =5,371 -19,794

* Net of provision for non-moving inventories of Rs 3.405 thousand { Previous year Rs 5,185 thousand)

{This space has been intentionally left blank )
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MINBCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZ2ZMDLI00I PLCLING74

Notes to the Financial Statemenis for the vesr ended March 31, 2019
(Al amounts in Rs, thousands, unless otharwise stated)
B {her Assets As al

March 31,2009  March 31,2008 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non - current Carrent

1) Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good - [ihE] =
{A) . 693 =
i) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
Unseoured, considersd good LI 23 16,891 17226
Unsecured, considered imparred - - 190 2109
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances - - {199) (2. 10%)
(B) 114 23 16,891 17224
b)  Other taxes recoverable - - 2713 5958
{C) - - 2,713 958
Total other assets {A+B+C) 110 716 19,604 23,184

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIrg: UT220DL200 1PLCTINETY
Motes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts n Ra: thousands, unless othervie stuted)

9 Equity share capital

a} Avthorised egaity share capital

Equity shares Red ble preference shares
Particalurs Mumber of Amount MNumber of Amount
shares shares
As at April 81,2017 (Face Value) 20,040,008 LU0, 000 16200, 004 184,000
Tncresse during the year S, 00, (D0 500,000 - -
As at March 31, 2008 (Face Value) T e 0 Tad pad 100, 00 100,000
Increase during the year - “ - L
As at March 31, 2009 (Face Value) T b 800 T, 000 1, 000 T Bk
b} Movement in equity share capital
Equity shares
Particolirs MNumber of Amount
shares

As at April 0], 2817 {Face Value) 19864072 10641
Increase dusing the year ). (00600 SO0.000
As ot March 31, 2018 (Face Value) 9064 872 650,641
Increase diging the vear " 5
As ot March 31, 2009 (Face Value) 69,064,072 £90.64]
) Dretail of class of shares held by the Company Name ol the Class of shares. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Holding Company Company Equity! Mo, nf shares N ol shares

NI Lamited Equity 69,064 072 [T
d} Details of Sharehobders bolding more than 5% shares in the Company

As it )

Particulars March 31, 2019 Murch 31, T01§

No. of shares % of holding Mo, of shares Y ol holding
WITT Limited 68 064,072 1060%5 69 D6 0172 100%
Total 69 864,072 1 69064072 10055

Out of the sbove, & Equity Shares are registered in the names of individuals, the beneficial interest of which lies with the Holding Coinpany,

€) Terma/ rights attached fs equity shares

The Contpany has one class of equity shares having o par value of Rs. 10 per share. Esch sharcholder is eligihle for one vote per share held, The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annusl General Meeting, ‘excepl in case of
interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remmining assets of the Company afier distribution of
all preferential amounts, in proporticn to their sharcholding

T} Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2019

1) 18,064 D65 equaty share of Bs 10 each were aliotted on July 6, 2015 to NIIT Limited pursuant to a Schens of Arrangement without payment of
cish,

it} S0.000.000 equity shares of Ra. 10 sach were alotied on Augest 4, 2017 10 NITT Limited by comverston of warlier irsued Cyptinoally Convertible
Debentures

(Thiez space has been intentionally et Hlenk)
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MINBCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZ20DL2B0PLCY 11674
Motes is the Financiel Statements far the year ended March 31, 20019
Al mrrounts in Bs. thousamds, unbess otherwise siated)

1 Cribver Equity Asat
March 31, 281%  March 31, 2018
Securities Premum 20,0010 20, 4W
Fetained Earmings {871,734) (B10,%28)
Other equiry 146,317 146,317
Total reserves and surplus (T85417) {644.611)
Asat
1§} Reserves And Surplus Miarch 31, 2819 March 31, 2018
#)  Securities Premivm
Balance a1 the begmning of the year 24, () 20,000
Balance at the end of the year (4} 20,004 20,004
b) Retained Earnings
Balance af the beginning of the yenr (BI0.928, (Tl 946}
Loss for the vear [6A1.654) {47,370
Cther comprehensive loss (152) {2,612}
Ealamce at thie end of the vear (B) (871,734} (410.928)
Total Reserves and Surplus { C ) (A+B) (B51,734) {THLI2R)
I} Other Reserves Asat

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2018

#)  Other equity

Balance a1 e beginmmyg of the yeir 146,317 414,087

Increase / decrease in equity instrament of compound financial imstrument ((30Ds) - {263 270)
Expenses for issue of equity share capital . (4,300}
Balance at the end of the year (D) 146,317 146317
Total (C+D0 (75417} (644.611)

(This space has been intentionnlby lefl Blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2208DE200IPLCII1674
Metes to the Finnncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Al amounts m Rs. thousands. unless otherwise stated)

Financial Lizbilities As ai Axat
Borrowings March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
MNon - current Carrent
Unsecured
From related partics
Loans from Holding Company * 250,000 - - 250, (HM}
Sub Total {A) 250,000 » 3 250,000
Total 250,HM) - - 250,000

* The Company has outstanding loan of Rs. 250,000 thousand (March 31, 2018 year Rs, 250,000 thousand ) from its holding
company. NIT Limited, at an interest rate sum of bank floating 1 year MCLR and fixed spread of 3.15% per annum The loan
outstanding in the previous year has been renewed for another period for 3 vears i.e March 28, 2022

{Thiz gpace has been intentionally left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DLIOM PLCEIIETS
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Marcch 31, 2019
(Al smoants in Rs. thoosands, unless otherwise stated)

As at
Trade Payables March 31, 2019 Mlarch 31, 2008
{Refer Note 26) Current
Trade pavables to other than micro and small enterprises 163,135 224,605
Tradde payables to micro and small enterprises 1.27% &
Trade payables to relsted parties 21,191 48322
Total trade payabies 157602 71233

Parties covered under Micro, Small and Medium-Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2019 have been identified on
the basic of information available with the Company. Disclosurés as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act,
2000 are a5 follows:

Particalars March 3§, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) the principal amount and the interest doe thereon resiaining unpaid o any supplicr ;
1} Principal amount 1,195 5
ii} Interest thereon £l I
b} the: amount of payment made 1 the supplier beyond the appointed day and the interest therean, during an
Becounting vear
1} Principal amount 16,022 n
i) Inderest thizreon f10 o

c} the amount of inferest doe and pavable for the vear of debay in making payment (which have been paid bug

bevond the sppointed day durg the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act = .
) the amount of interest sccrued and remaining onpaid at the end of each accounting vear 81 1
e}t -amount of further interest remainmig due and pavabie even in the succeeding vears, until sich date when the

interest dues shove are actually paid to the small investor P ,

A at
‘Other Financial Linbilitics March 31, 2012 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2819 March 31, 2018
(Refer Note 26) MNom - current Current
Security Depasits Pavable )] 4,638 - -
Dther Payables * - - 26,795 26,252
Total other financial liabilities 1id) 4,634 26,795 16,251

* Includes Payable to Employees smounting to Rs. 25,030 thousand (Previous year Rs. 23,827 thousand) out of which Pavables to Key Managesial Person
amounting 1o B 542 thousand (Previous vear Rs. 308 thousand).

Provisions Asat
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2015
Non - current Current
Provision for Employves Benefits
~Provizion for Gratuity - B 11336 B.656
-Provision for Compensated Absences® 76 Bl £.502 3,343
Total Provision Th i | 18.23% 13.599

* During the vear expense charged | (credited) amounting on account of compensiied absences Bs 1,883 thousand (March 31, 2018, Rs (125} thowsand) and
benefits paad in Bs. 329 thonsand (March 31, 2018 Bs 469 thousand).

As at

Criher Liabilities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2008 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Miom - eurrent Current

Deferred Revenue 2.299 6177 11,342 21,016

Advances from Customers - - 11.421 17,713

Seatutory Dues = - 0542 21514

Total other linbilities 2290 6,177 32305 600,243

{This space has been intentichally left blank )
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: V72200 B LI00IPLC I 1067
Motes 10 the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

Revenue From Operations

Sale of Products -
~Courseware and Traning Material
-Hardware & Accessories

Sale of Services
- Discounts & Rebates

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with custemers

Other Income

Imterest Income

Profit from Sale of Current Fnvestment

G on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (net)

Gain on foreizn currency translation and transaction (net)
Other Non-Operating Income

Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and Benefits

Centmibiation to Provident and other Funds
Employees Stock Option Expenses®
Welfare and Other expenses

“Employess Stock Options Expenses are pavable 1o the Holding Company

( This space has been ntentionally ledl Blank)

(Al amounts in Bs. thousands, unless otherwse stated)

Yesr ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
141,021 1749765
32 808 45, 160
157.474 367,748
(163) -
351,140 592,673
193,666 224,925
157.474 367,748
351 Jgn 591&?3
Year ended

Mlarch 31, 2009

March 31, 2018

11,730 8466
G2 i
121 1,589
B 32
[ER. 15,4492
26,647 25669
Year ended
March 31, 219 March 31, 2018
190,725 277053
9 841 11481
1,946 422
2.954 5183
205 486 294,141
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2M0IPLCI11674
MNotes (o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All samounts in Rs, thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Finance Costs

Interest Expense
Other Borrowing Costs

Other Expenses

Equipment Hiring

Freight and Cantage

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Power & Fuel

Communication

Legal and Professional

Management Cost Recovery by Holding Company

Travelling and Conveyance

Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Bad debts Wrinten off

Allowance for Doubiful Advances and Deposits
Professional & Technical Outsourcing Expenses

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance

= Plant and Machinery

- Buildings

- Cthers

Consumables

Loss on Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction (net)

Security and Adminisiration Services

Bank Charges

Marketing & Advertising Expenses

Sundry Expenses

Fayment To Auditors

As Auditor

- Audit Fee

- Certification Fee

- Reimbursement of éxpenses (inclusive of taxes)

Exceptional ltems
Reversal of allowance for doubeful debis

Liabilities written back
Total

During the year. the Company had written back Rs. 13,366

against which provision were created in earlier vears r[’

Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
31,834 51912
2,250 2250
34.084 60,162
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
557 170
7.276 11415
9928 16672
1.563 22
2030 2,171
4,164 5,589
12,881 8372
14.068 22 146
27816 29,595
17018 30,037
- 2.661
20 -
- 29131
13 12
1.04% 1,830
164 179
3,002 2369
4,533 13.214
14 B
B33 929
62 307
6,484 3993
464 2,366
115,080 178,980
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
485 485
i -
145 131
650 fil6
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
13,266 -
2109 -
15375

gfsand on sccount of collections received from customers

Jolnily
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL200 1 PLCIILGTS
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts in Rs. thousands, unbess otherwise stated)

Il Income tax expense

(2) Income tax expense Year ended
March 31, 2019  Masrch 31, 2018

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year - 3.266
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 867 78
Total current tax expense 867 5344
Deferred tax
Increase in minimum alternate tax credit -867 -3,266
Total deferred tax expense/{benefit) 867 5,266
Income tax expense . T8
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
Year ended
March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018

Lozz before Tax -00,654 -47,292
Tax at the Indian tax rate of (FY 20018-19 27.82%) (FY 2017-18 27.82%) * - .
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Adjustment for Taxes relating to eaclier vears - T3
Income tax expense - T8

* Since there is logs, therefore no tax is computed.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CiN: UT2200DLZ00 1 PLC1T1674
Motes to the Financial Statements for the yeir ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
22 Fair value measurements

(i} Fair value hierarchy

To provide indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard explained below:

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, This includes listed equity instruments, traded
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in fevel 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

The Company's policy 15 to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levils at the end of reporting period.

{ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- The use of quoted market prices for similar instruments,

- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using Mark to Market Valuation by the respective bank at the
balance sheet date.

- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Financial instruments by category and hierarchy of measurement

As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 259170 291,373
Cash and bank balances 20,348 £3.803
Orther financial assets 1,906 30,931
Total financial assets 251,424 426,107
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 250,000 250,000
Trade payabies 187,602 272,933
Other financial liabilities 26,895 30,890
Total financial liabilities 464,497 553,823

As of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 | the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets
and liabilities, borrowings, trade payables approximate their carrying amount fargely due to the short term nature of these instruments.
For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, e carrying amounis approximate the fair value,
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZ200T 200 PLCI 11674
Motes tu the Finsncial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

(Al asnoqunts in Bs. thousends. unless diherwise stated )

21 Fimancial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities. other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The mam purpose of these
financial liabilitics is to finance the Compaiy’s operations and to provide guaraniees 1o support its operations. The Company's principal financial dssets inclide
loans, trade and other receivalbiles, and cash and shom-term deposits that derive directly from its operations

The Company 15 exposed 1o markel risk, credit fsk and biguidity risk. The Cotmpany's scnior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company's senior management is supported by a financial nisk committee that advises on financial risks and the approprate financial risk Eoveinince
framewark for the Company. The financial risk committes provides assurance to the Company's senior management thai the Company's financial nisk activities
e gmm:d by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in sceordance with the Comipany's palicies

{A) Credit risk

Credit nisk refers to the sk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure o the credit risk a the
reporting date is primarily from trade recervables amounting 1o Rs. 259,170 thousand and Re 281,373 thousand as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,
respectively and unbilled revenue amounting to Rs. 691 thousand and Rs. 48,110 thousand as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, respectively Trade
recewvabiles and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed through subsidianes, government customers and other coTporate
customers. The Company has used the expected credit loss mode! 1o assess the impairment loss or gain en trade recetvables and unbifled revenue, and has
provided it wherever appropriate. The following table gives the movement in allowaince for expected credit loss:

Reconcilistion of loss allowance provision — Trade receivabies

Particelars Amount in Rs.
Loss allowance on April 01, 2017 151,470
Changes in loss allowance® -34.053
Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 117,417
Changes 1 Joss allewance” 2,385

Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 114,802

* Duning the year Company has writen back allowance for doubtful debis for amounting to Bs. 15,533 thousand (March 31 2018 Rs 6, 090 thousand) and
turther alftwance for doubtful debt charged in the statement of profit and kss for amounting e s, 17,918 thousand (March 31, 20018 Rs. 30,037 thonzand).

{B) Liguidity risk

The Company's prmeipal sources: of liquidity are cash and cush equivilems and the cash fow that &5 generated from operations. The Company has no
outstanding borrowings except term loans and working capiral limits from banks. The term loans are secired against hypothecation of the vehicles and working
capital limit is secured by a first charge on the book debts of the Company and by a second charge on movable assets of the Company. . However, the Company
belisves that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly. ni bguidity risk s perceived

i} Marurities of fimancial Nabilities

The table below provides details regarding the contracnial maturities of significant financial habilitics as at March 31. 2019

Particufers Less than | year Betwnsn 1 vad 2 mh'fm Sy Taotal
years YEArs

Borrowings - - 250,000 250 (060

Trade pavables 187 602 £ - 187,602

Other financial kabilines 26,7495 - 100 26.895

Total non-derivative liabilities 214,307 > 250,100 464,497

The table below provides details regarding the confractual matunties of significant financial lisbilities as at March 31, 2014
Between 1 and 2 Between 2 and 5

Farticulars Less than | vear Total
YERTS Vears
Bonowings 500, (W - = 250,000
Trade payables 211833 - - ina
Oiher financial labilitics 26,252 - 4,618 Ji, RO
Taotal non-derivative linbilities 549,185 = 4,638 553823
() Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market nsk comprises
three types of nsk; interest rate risk, currency risk and other price nisk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affecied by market
nisk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investmenits measared at FVTPL and derivative financial INEENTS

(i) Inderest rate risk

Interest rate resk is the nisk fat dhe Tasr value or fiture cash flows of a financial mstrument will flucnte because of changes in market interest tates. There zre
vo significant borrowings on the financial statements. Hence, there is no srgmificant concentration of interese rate risk.

{ii) Foreign CUrTency risk

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange nsk arismg from forcign currency transactions, primartdy wath respect 10 the UISD
Foreign exchange risk anses from futwre commersial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency thot s not the company's
functional currency (TNR). The Company evaluates its exchange rie exposure ansing from these transactions and enters into foreign exchange forward
contraces 1o bedge forecasted cash flows denominated in forcign currency and mitigate such exposure

The Company's exposure to foreypffagms 184 af the end of the reporting period m psand, are ag follows
o L]
[ As 20 Asat Maich 31, 2018
LsD [E]s5G QAR 15D SGD
af !
Trade receivables 1.524 i P i Té = - 1.145 3407
Financial labilines e \“':’/ g
Trade payables . B %
LISD: United States Dol S0 Smzapore Dollar, QAR Chatart Ryval
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SVSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DLI0BIPLCIE 1674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year eaded March 31, 2018
(Al emounts in Rs, thousands, anless otherwise stated)

ﬂ 4 Employee Benefits
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A} Defined Contribation Plans

The Compeny makes contribution towards Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined coniribution plans for eligible
employess.

The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds-in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2819 March 31, 2818
Emplovers’ Contribution to Provident Fund 2.956 3.545
Emgployers” Contribution to Superannuation Fund 673 nT
Emplayers” Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 3406 5124
Employers® Contribution to Employee National Pension System 218 320
Total 7,253 5 6%

The Company has charged the following costs m Contribation to Providers and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss for Key Munagerial

Personnel:
Year ended

March 31, 2619 March 31, 2018
Employers’ Contibution to Provident Fund 159 116
Employers’ Contribution 1o Superanmaation Fund iR7 [50
Employers' Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 15 15
Employers’ Contribution to Employee National Pension System 125 104

450 390
B} Defined Benefit Plans
1. Gratuity Fund - Funded
As at

Particulars
i) Change in Present value of Obligation:-

Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 10,918 B.266
Interest cost 765 &1
Current service cost 1961 1,452
Acquisition (credit) / cost 231 63 .
Benifits paid from plan assets -1.448 -1.972
Actuarial (gain) loss - experience -128 R4
Actuarial {gain}/ loss - financial assumptions 2648 1,748
Present value of obligation as at the vear end 12,568 10,918
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i} Change in value of Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the begmmng of the veur 1262 3029
Acquisition adjustment 231 65
Expected returm on Plan Assets 118 177
Contributions 80 278
Benefits Paid {1448) (1972}
Baztun on plan assets (gredater) / less than discount rate {11} {15}
Fair valne of Plan Assets as at the end of the vesr 1212 2262
Fair value of Plan Present valoe of Assets/ (obligation)

iii} Amount of Asset/ (Obligation) recognised in the Balance Sheet:-

As.al March 31, 2019
As ot March 31, 2018

iv} Gratwity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit 2nd Loss:-

March 31, 2619

March 31, 2018

Assels a5 3t the end of obligation as at the end recognised in Balance
of the vear

Sheet

12.508
10518

Year ended

-11.336
-B.656

Farticalars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current service ciost 1.961 1.452
Interest cost 647 333

Expense recognised in the Sistement of Profit and Loss 1,608 1,785

Estimated eontributions for the vear ended on March 31, 2020 s Rs, 11336 thousands (Previous vear Bs. 8,656 thousands)
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RINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN; UT2200D1L 200 PLOCT 11674
Motes to the Finsecinl Statrments for the vear ended March 31, 2019

(ANl amounts in Rs. thousands, onless otherwise statid)

v) Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprebensive Income:- Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2818
Actuanial loss - experience =128 849
Actuarial loss - financial assumptions 269 1.748
Retum on plan assets (greater) / lezs than discount rate 11 15

Expense recognises through other comprehensive loss 152 1,612

As at

vi) Assumpticns used in accounting for gratuity plan:- March 21, 2019 March 31, 2018

Discount Rate (Per Annum}) 7.25% 7.50%
11%a for FY 2019-20, 1% for first 2 years,

Funes Swfury Inpteioe 8% thereafier 8% thereafter
Expected Rate of return on plan assets T65% B.215%

Estimates of future salary increase vonsidered in actuarial valuation. takes into sccovnt inflation, seniority. promotion and other rélevant factors such as
supply and demand in the employmisnt market.

vii) Investment details of Flan Assets:-

The plin mssets are maintained with Life lnsurance Corporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of investment mantained by Life Insurance
Corporation are not available with the Company and have not been disclosed.

The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the compensation of plan assets held, assessed risk of asset
munagement. historical result of the return on plan assets .

viii) Sensitivity analvsis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on défined heacfit obligation

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in
Bssumption
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Discount rate .50% -529 370
Salary growth rare .50 362 =527
Withdrawal rate 5.0 =l 480
Impaci on defined benefit obligation
Chasige in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in
assumption
March 31, 2018 March 31,2018 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 0.50% =431 485
Salary growth rate 0,507 479 449
Withdrawal rate 5.00% =380 82

The above sensitivity analyses are based on & change in an assumption while holding all other azsumplions constant. In practice. this i unlikely to occor, and
changes in some of the assuraptions may be correlated, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligtion (o significant actuarial assumptions
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligution calculated with the projected unit credit method af the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as and when caleulating the defined benefit liahility recognized in the balance sheet,

ix} The major categories of plan assets are as fallows:

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Scheme of insurance - conventional prodicts 100%% 104

Eisk ¢xposare

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is expased 1o a numnber of risks, e most significant of which are market volatility. changes in mflation,
changes in interest rates. rising longevity. changing economic environment, regulatory changes cte. The Company ensures that the investment positions are
mianaged within an asset and hability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the
employes benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company's asset-lability matching objective is to match asséts 1o the obligations by investing in
securities to match the benefit pavments as they fall due

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from emploves
benefit oblipations, The Company has aot changed the processes used to maiage its risks from previous periods. Investments are well diversified, such that
failure of any single investment should not have & material impact on the overall level of assets
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2HHDLI00 FLCLLIGTY
Notes to the Financial Statements far the vear ended March 31, 2619

(ANl smotnts in Bs, thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Loss Per Share Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders () (6i654)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos ) - (B) 69,064,072
MNominal Value of Equity Shares {Rs.) 10
Basic loss per Share (Rs.} (A/B) ; {0.88)
Dreluted foss per Share (Rs.) {A/B) {0.88)

Retated Party Transactions
A, Related party relationship where control exists:

Holding Company - NITT Limited

w

Fedlow Subsidiaries

NIIT Institute of Finance Hanking and Insurance Training Limited

NIIT Yuva Jyoti Limited

NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited

NUT USA Inc, USA

NIIT Limited, UK

NIIT Malaysia Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia

WIT West Africa Limited

I GC Limdted, Mawritius

MIT (dretand) Lunited

10 NHT Learning Solutions {Canada) Limited

1 Eagle mternational Institute Inc USA

12 Eagle Tramning Span, 5 LU

13 NIT Antilles MY, MNetherlands Antilles (liquidated w.e f November 23, 2017}

14 PT NOT Indonesia, Indonesia

15 NIIT China {Shanghai) Limited, Shanghai

16 NIT Wuxi Service Outsourcing Traming School, Chma (Memorandum of Underitanding was executed 1o sell on Apal 1, 2017)
1T Wi NIIT Information Technology Consulting Lmmited, China (agreement i sell emered on March 31 2018}
18 3u Zhou NIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China

1% Changzhou NIIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China

20 Zhangjiagang NIT Information Services Limited, China

21 Qingdao NITT Information Technology Company Limited, Ching (closed woe £ Jamary 31, 201 B)
22 Chengmai NIIT Information Technology Company Limited, China

23 Chorigging An Dao Education Consulting Limited, China

24 Chengging NHT Edocation Cossulting Limited, China

25 NAT (MingXin} Education Technology Company Limited, Ching

26 Drafeng MIIT Information Technology Co,, Limnited, China {closed w.e £ Ociober 25, 2017)

27 Guizhou NIT Informiation Technology Consulting Co , Limited. Ching

28 NITT {Guizhou) Education Technology Co Limited, China

= R S S P

o

C. Other related parties with whom ihe Company bas transacied
u. Key Managerisl Personnel

I Gavin Diebreo (Chief Execttive Officer upto June 30, 2018)

2 Umesh Kumar Gola (Cheef Financial Officer)

3 Leena Khokha (Manager w e f December 31, 201%)

b. Parties in which the Kev Managerinl Personnel of the Holding Company are mteresied
I MIT Foundatson { formerty known as NIT Education Society)
2 NIT University (a body corporate in which two Mon-Executive Directors.of the Company are members of its goverming body)

Do Key Management Personnel compensation

(47,370}
51,940,784
1]

(0.91)
[0.91)

March 31, 201%

March 31, 2018

Short-term smployver benefits 6615
Post-employment benefits 7
Share based payments 166

12 6
42

Tutal compenaation 7,574

13,428

E  Terms and conditfans
Transactisns with related partics during the vear were bnsed on terma that would be availabibe to tard pa
and comditions and at markel rates,

The avernge imterest mte on the bamowings during the year 15 12.4% (March 31 2018 was 125%)

All utstanding bafaness are unsecused and are repavabls in cash
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: BT2200DL280IPLCTE 1674
Motes 1o the Financial Stxtements for the yoar ended March 31, 2019

It Related Party Transactions { Conid.)
F. Details of significant transactions with the Kelated Prrties carried oat in erdinary course of business:-

(AN amounts in Bs, thousands, unless otherwise stiated)

Farties in which Key

" Managerial Key
Nature of Transactions Cli:l:l::j' h;’.""‘l jaries  Tersonnel of Holding  Manageriai Total
Company sre Persomnel
imteresied
Sale of Goods- Revenue 1,178 1516 - 4 694
s {1,989 : {1,985
Sule of services- Revenie - 216 . 216
Recovery of Expenses From 249 - - - 49
{261) - i3 - {264)
Management Cost Becovery- Other Expenses 13,106 - - - 13,106
{22,522} 2 = = (22 51%)
Corporate Guarantee Charges- Other Borrowing Costs 2,230 - - - L]
{22300 2 - + {2,2501
Recovery of Emplovee Benelits experses by 1393 = - ; 2795
HRecovery of Expenses By 13,703 - - 13,705
{15,356} . y (15.556)
Remunesation (o Key Managerial Personnel - - 7574 751
s * (13,428 {13,428}
Interest Expense- Finance Cost: 30,000 - B = 31000
(23, 105) - - - {25.105)
Essuanee of Equuty share capital - - - =
{500,000} = . {500,000)
D Repad - - - - -
{100,000 ) - + 3 { OE 0K
Loan Toaken 250,000 - - - 250006
{300,000) = = = {300,000}
Lisan Repaid 250, 0041 - 250,600
(50000 {30,000
G.. Details of outstanding balances with refated parties:
Parties in which Key
£ Mansgerial Kev
Particalars Holding . h.lh'. Fersonnel of Holding  Managerial Total
Company Subsidiaries
Company are Personnel*
imterested
i) Fayables
March 51, 2019 21,191 - 542 21,731
Mirch 31, 2018 (48.322) . - {308} (48,6307
it} Receivables
March 31, 2019 - 2571 - 257
March 31, 2018 (7,562} {14513 . {2.013)
iii}) Loan payables
March ¥, 2019 250,000 - : 230,000
March 31, 2018 (250,000 - - {230,000}

Previous year figures are iiven in parenthests
* mcluded m other payables,

I The Company has availed corporate guaristes issoed b
The Hokdmg company has commitied operational and Gnanem] supports 10 the Compansy.

W Hedding comparry of Rs; 450,000 thowsand (Previous year Rs. 450000 thosand) for working caprtal limits |
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UN20DL2MIPLCEN 1674
Mates to the Financial Statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2019
(Adl amounts in Rs; thousands. unless othorwise stated)

27 Segment Information

The Company % engaged in providing Education & Training Services in & single geography. Based on “Mansgement Approsch” | as
defined in Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting, the Chief Operating Pecision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates
resources based on the analysis of performance of the Company as a whole. Tis operations are, therefore, considered fo constitute a
single sepment in the context of nd AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

28 Leases

Operating Leases:
The Company has entered into leases for office premises, employee accommodations. equipments and vehicles which are cancelable af
the option of the Company by giving the requisite notice. Aggregate payments during the year under operating leases are as shown

hereunder:
Particulars Yearended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
In respect of premises® 9.084 9.905
In respect of equipments** 416 129
In respect of vehicles 844 767
Total 18,344 10,801
* includes payment in respesct of premised for office and emplovee accomodation,
** includes pryment in respect of computers, printérs and other EQUIpMEnts,
29 Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 {Revenue from contracts with customers)
a. Disaggregated révenue information March 31, 2019
Type of Services
Sale of Courseware and Training Material 160,858
Sale of Hardware & Accessorics 32,808
Sale of Services 137.474
' 351,140
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Goods (Courseware. Training Material, Hardware & Accessories)
transferred of & point in time 193,666
Services transferred over time ( Tralning Services) 157.474
351,140
b. Trade receivables and Contruct Customers
Trade Receivahles 150170
Unbitled Revenue 6891
259,861
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and arc gencrally on terms of 60 - 90 days. Rs. 17.918 thousands was recognised as
provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
A receivables is ight to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Revenue for ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be inveiced is recorded as unkilled revenue
e. Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggrepate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the
end of the reporting period and an explanation as 1o when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As on March
31. 2019, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services,

30 The Company internally develops software tools, plarforms and content/courseware, The management estimates that this would resalt

k|

in enhanced productivity and offer more technology based learning products! solutions o the customess in future, The Company 15
confident of its ability 1o penerate future economic benefits out of the abovermentioned assets, The posts incurred during the vear
wowards the development are as follows:

Year ended

Description March 31, 2019 March 31, 2008
Opening Capital Work-in-Progress 38.206 1371
Add:-Expenditure during the year

Salary and other Emplovee Benefits 6,126 9.933
Professional & Technical Outsourcing Expense B.227 26,312
Rent B3 292
Other Expenses 128 298
Less:-Intangible Capitalised during the vear (27.946) -
Closing Balance at the end of the year 15,024 38,206

projections of School buziness

ompany 15 expected lo witness

@pitted operational and financial
e concem basiz

The net worth of the Company 35 eroded as at March 31, '

and the future outlook of the Company. the Board of Di U

improved performance in following years. Further. the hoMiglgs
Sapports to the Company. Accordingly Company's Financial Sia
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZ280D.2001 PLC1 Y 1674
Motes in the Finsnclal Statements for ibe vear ended March 31, 2040

12 Previous year figures have been regronped { reclassified 1o conform the current year classification

Signatures 1o Motes "1° to 32" of these Financial Statements.

For S.R. Bailiboi & Associages LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Frrm Registration No: 1000490 E 100004 Mi pien Lesrning Svstems Limited-
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SR Amit Roy

Partner Darector

Membership No, 400414 DI - 07138197
Umfsh Kumar Aviral Bhurgava
Chief Financial Oificer Congrany Secretnry

Place: Gurugram = Flace: Canugram

Drate April 30, 2019 Date: ' Agril 30, 2019




